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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 61st Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the shareholders of Service Industries Textiles Limited (“Company”)
will be held on 28 October, 2022 at 09.30 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company, 38-Empress Road, Lahore to transact the following Business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

2.

To confirm the minutes of 60th Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2021

To consider, approve and adopt Annual Audited accounts of the Company together with the Directors' Auditors' Report for the
year ended June 30, 2022.

To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2023 and to fix remuneration. The retiring Auditors
M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for reappointment.

To elect seven directors as fixed by the board of directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 159(1) of the Companies
Act, 2017 for a period of three years commencing from October 31, 20222 in place of the following retiring directors namely: -

1. Mr. Mohammad Hameed 2. Mr. ljaz Hameed

3. Mr. Aamer Hameed 4.  Mr. Tarig Hameed

5.  Mr. Murtaza Hameed 6.  Mr. Omar Mohyud Din Malik
7.  Mrs. Zainab Khan

OTHER BUSINESS:

5. To transact any other business with permission of the Chair.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
W\(\V‘C)\’ &/
LAHORE (USMAN KHALID)
06 October, 2022 Company Secretary
NOTES

1. BOOK CLOSURE
The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 21.10.2022to 28.10.2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers
received at the Company's Share Registrar's Office i.e. M/s Corplink (Pvt) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial, Model Town,
Lahore, upto the close of business on 20.10.2022 will be considered in time for the purpose attending the meeting.

2. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES
A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote
on his behalf at the meeting. The instrument of the proxy duly executed in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company must be received at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding of the
meeting.

3. FOR ATTENDING MEETING
Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his/her original CNIC or Passport,
Account and participant's 1.D numbers, to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy must enclose and attested copy of his/her
CNIC or Passport. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose. The
account/sub account holders of CDC will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 of 2000 dated January
26, 2000 issued by Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

4. CONSENT TO ACT AS DIRECTOR

In terms of Section 159 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017, any member who seeks to contest election to the office of director of
the company shall file with the Company, at its registered office, a notice of intention to offer himself for election not later than
fourteen days before the date of Annual General Meeting along with a written consent to act as directors.
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5. MEASURES TAKE OWING TO PREVAILING SITUATION OF COVID 19 PANDEMIC

10.

To ensure to safety and well-being of all the Members keeping in view of the prevailing situation due to COVID 19 pandemic and
pursuant to the guidelines issued by the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan, vide its Circular No.04 of 2021 dated February
15, 2021, members interested in attending the AGM through ZOOM are requested to get themselves registered by sending an
email at least 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting at info@prime-service.com by providing the following details:

Name of the Folio /7 CDC Email
Member CNIC No. Account No Cell No. Address

Login facility will be opened thirty minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the meeting after the
identification process. Members will be able to login and participate in the Annual General Meeting proceedings through their
devices after completing all the formalities required for the identification and verification.

CONSENT FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

Members can also avail video conference facility. In this regard please fill the following and submit to registered address of the
Company 10 days before the general meeting.If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more
shareholding residing at geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to
the date of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that
city.

1/We of ,
being a member of Service Industries Textiles Limited, holder of Ordinary shares as per Register Folio / CDC
account No. hereby opt for video conference facility at

Signature of Member
POSTAL BALLOT

Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Sections 143-145 of the Companies Act,
2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

AVAILABILITY OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In accordance with the provision of section 223 and 237 of the Companies Act, 2017, the audited financial statement of the
Company for the year, which ended of June 30, 2022 are available on the Company's website: www.sitl.com.pk

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Shareholders are requested to notify the change of their addresses, if any, to our Share Registrar M/s Corplink (Pvt) Limited,
Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore Tel N0.042-35839182, 042-35916714-19.

CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES TO ELECTRONIC

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace its physical shares with
book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission.

The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor
account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form, this will facilitate them in many ways, including safe
custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of
the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
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Review Report by the Chairman

I am pleased to present before you the report on the overall performance of the Board and its role in achieving the
company's objective as well as ensuring overall compliance of the Code of Corporate Governance and Companies Act,

2017.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2022, an annual evaluation of Board of Director's is carried out and the Board's
overall performance and effectiveness has been assessed as satisfactory.The overall assessment is based on evaluation
of integral components, including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policies;
monitoring the organization's business activities; monitor financial resource management; effective fiscal oversight;
equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the Board's business. Despite many challenges during
the period under review Directors have been able to deliver and keeps the company afloat through persistence and

diligent efforts
The Board of Directors of your Company received agendas and supporting written material including follow up materials
in sufficient time prior to the board and its committee meetings. The board meets frequently enough to adequately

discharge its responsibilities. The non-executive and independent directors are equally involved in important decisions.

The Company is striving to further improve the working conditions of its employees to provide safe, healthy and

comfortable working environment.

=

Lahore ljaz Hameed

06 October, 2022 Chairman
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
The directors are pleased to present the 61st annual report along with the audited financial statement for the year ended 30 June 2022.
Operating & Financial Results:

During the year, net revenue from sales were Rs. 1.342 Billion as compared to Rs. Rs 1.230 Billion during the previous year. Gross profit
for the year is Rs. 37.645 Million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 130.246 Million).The company has incurred a net loss after taxation of Rs.11.370
Million as compared to net profit of Rs. 59.543 Million in preceding year. One of the reasons for the loss during the year is unprecedented
hike in cotton prices domestically and globally. Cotton prices jacked up from 0.87 cents/Ibs to 1.40cents /Ibs during the year. On the other
hand yarn prices had not been inflated to the extent of increase in cotton prices which resulted in reducing the margins during the year.
In addition to this Pakistan rupee fell to record low against dollar owing to multiple factors but mainly that of political instability. Also
due to Russia-Ukraine war oil prices were traded at record high levels which significantly increased the fuel cost during the year especially
in the last quarter. Furthermore the non availability / curtailment of gas have also contributed in high fuel cost.

It is quite challenging in today's business environment to keep the Company afloat in these circumstances. The Directors of your Company
are committed to run the Company at any cost and therefore we are doing our utmost to make your Company more competitive by
following best practices and making the Company more viable

Key Operational and Financial Data

JUNE 2022 JUNE 2021  JUNE 2020 JUNE 2019 JUNE 2018 JUNE 2017 JUNE 2016

Rs. '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000
Sales 1,341,765 1,230,010 921,250 979,881 854,392 801,430 483,006
Gross Profit / (Loss) 37,645 130,246 59,146 85,254 48,176 43,915 15,037
Operating Profit/(Loss) (8,452) 87,222 23,934 54,684 21,444 21,067 (8,756)
Profit/(Loss)before Tax (7,552) 80,734 (1,832) 42,758 13,060 8,132 (18,025)
Tax (3,818) (21,192) (23,210) (5,644) (2,413) 676 (4,737)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (11,370) 59,543 (25,042) 37,114 1,065 8,809 (22,763)
Total Assets 1,492,622 866,901 828,577 811,059 606,487 555,566 610,421
Current Liabilities 197,287 174,181 166,913 132,778 167,362 108,391 151,979

1,295,335 692,720 661,664 678,281 439,125 447,175 458,442
Presented by:
Equity-net 1,167,855 563,211 543,911 571,517 363,685 353,055 343,860
Long term loans 46,066 52,209 26,270 36,700 48,700 60,700 72,700
Deferred Liability 81,414 77,300 91,484 70,065 26,740 33,420 41,882

1,295,335 692,720 661,664 678,281 439,125 447,175 458,442

EPS:
Earnings per share (basic) for the year ended June 30, 2022 is Rs. -0.82 (2021:Rs9.91)
Future Prospects:

Currently Pakistan is facing the aftermath of worst floods of her history. Pakistan is now predicted to experience an economic loss of $12.5
billion to $ 15.00 billion approximately as a result of the destruction caused by flooding. These floods have severely affected the cotton
crop due to which the total production of cotton in the country is expected to be around 65 lakh bales. For last few years cotton scarcity
remains the country's primary concern for textile industry and usually 3 to 4 million bales were imported every year to fulfill the requirements
of local industry. There are multiple factors for the decline in cotton production such as climate change, uncertified seeds, unchecked
business of spurious pesticides, and high cost of production with diminishing return for farmers. Due to recent flooding approximately
7.0 million bales of cotton will have to be imported. This could set the country back significantly, especially with its dwindling foreign
currency reserves. Government should realize this and should work with local farmers and help them in providing the quality seed and
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Implementation of modern techniques for improving yield and better quality of cotton. The Government has promised the industry RCET
(regionally competitive energy tariff)which has been approved for one quarter of the next financial year with the total subsidy of Rs. 20
Billion unfortunately with the rise in fuel prices this subsidy will be insufficient and will need to be revised. Also the government should
sit with all stakeholders of the industry and discuss the energy cost of mills all across Pakistan. There is a huge disparity in regards with
energy cost amongst the mills in Sindh and Punjab which is making the Punjab based industry uncompetitive. This is a serious situation
and needs the attention of the government as dual policy for Sindh and Punjab mills can be disastrous in the long run
Another factor that has severely impacted the economy is Russia-Ukraine war. This has jolted the world economy and as a result all
commodity prices but in particular fuel prices have been increased significantly locally and globally. This along with political instability
and unrest has depreciated the Pak rupee against dollar significantly. All these factors have resulted in highest inflation of 27.3% since
1970’s and trade deficit has also been widening.

To counter the unpredictability, the State bank of Pakistan has tightened the monetary policy and increased its policy rate to 15% to
combat inflationary pressure and promote sustained economic recovery but still there will be no respite soon to be.
Due to above factors (shortage of cotton and very high fuel prices) subsequent to the year end, number of mills have either reduced their
production partially or shut it down completely. Therefore we foresee the coming year 2022-23 will be very challenging for the textile
industry. For the survival of industry it is very importance that the Government shall continue the supply of energy at regional competitive
rates throughout the year apart from the availability of cotton by timely importing it.

We are fully aware of the challenges and are prepared to do everything possible to mitigate the adverse impact of such an event as far
as it is under the control of management. We remain hopeful of the improving macro and micro economic situation of the Country. The
Directors of your Company are committed to run the Company at any cost and therefore we are doing our utmost to make your Company
more competitive by following best practices and making the Company more viable.

Payment of Dividend:
No dividend has been declared by the Board of directors during the year due to losses.
Corporate & Financial Reporting Framework:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company.

c) Appropriated accounting policies have been adopted and consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements.
Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International financial reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of financial statements.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored. The process of review
will continue and any weakness in control will be removed.

f) Six year financial summary is annexed.

g) Pattern of shareholdings as on June 30, 2022 and its disclosure as required by the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed
with this report.

h) The Company has adopted best practices of corporate governance as per listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Internal Control System:

The Company has always emphasized on a sound Internal Control System for the effective implementation and monitoring of Internal
Control System.

Statutory Payments:

There is no outstanding statutory payment payable other than those shown in the relevant Notes to the financial statements.
Composition of the Board of Directors:

The total number of directors is seven (07) including the Chief Executive (deemed director) as per the following:

Male: 6
Female: 1
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The composition is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Director Mr. Omer Mohyudin Malik
Ms. Zainab Khan

Executive Director Mr. Muhammad Hameed
Mr. Aamer Hameed

Non-Executive Mr. ljaz Hameed

Mr. Tariq Hameed
Mr. Murtaza Hameed
Female Director Ms. Zainab Khan

Board of Directors Meeting:
During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Board of Directors held five meetings. Attendance of each director is given hereunder:

Mohammad Hameed
ljaz Hameed

Aamer Hameed

Tarig Hameed
Murtaza Hameed
Omer Mohyudin Malik
Zainab Khan

o1 o1 oo ool

Committees of the Board:

To assist the smooth operations of the Board and support in sound decision making, the Board has established two committees which
are chaired by independent directors. These committees are as follows

Audit Committee:

The committee comprises of three (3) members as per the following:

Omer Mohyudin Malik (Chairman)
Zainab Khan (Member)
Murtaza Hameed (Member

During the year four meetings of Audit Committee of the Board were held. Attendance by each director is as follows:

Omer Mohyudin Malik 4
Zainab Khan 4
Murtaza Hameed 4

Human Resource and Remuneration (HR & R) Committee:

The committee comprises of three (3) members as per the following:

Zainab Khan (Chairperson)
ljaz Hameed (Member)
Omer Mohyudin Malik (Member)

During the year three meetings of HR & R Committee of the Board were held. Attendance by each director is as follows:

Zainab Khan 2
ljaz Hameed 2
Omer Mohyudin Malik 2

Value of Investment of Gratuity Fund:

The Company has maintained a Gratuity fund for its employees however there are no plan assets covering this liability as on June 30,
2022.

Books of Accounts:
The Company at the registered Office has maintained proper books of accounts.
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Director's Remuneration:

The feature of executive director's remuneration policy prepared and recommended by human resource and remuneration committee
(HRRC) has been approved by the board subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2017, Companies' Article of Association and Code
of Corporate Governance Regulations. The policy has been designed on the basis of standards in the market, and reflects demands to
competencies & efforts in light of scope of their work and increase in responsibilities of the directors. No director takes part in deciding
his own remuneration.

Auditors:

M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants retired and being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment and the
Board's Audit Committee has also recommended their re-appointment which is endorsed by the Board for the year ending 30 June 2023.

Code of Conduct:

The code of conduct has been developed and has been communicated and acknowledged by each Director and Employee of the Company.
Related Party Transactions:

The Company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained in the listing regulation of stock exchange in
Pakistan. The transactions with related parties were carried out at arm's length prices determined in accordance with the comparable
uncontrolled prices method. During the year, the Company carried out transactions with its related parties. Details of these transactions
are disclosed in financial statements attached therein (note 32) Details of related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee,
and upon recommendation of the Board Audit Committee, the same are placed before the Board of Directors for review and approval in
accordance with regulatory requirements.

Social Responsibility:

Your company has very distinct Corporate and Social Responsibility (CSR) policy in fulfilling its responsibilities of securing the community
within which it operates. Its philanthropic activities include participation in health and environmental protection initiatives.

Safety, Health and Environment:

We maintain our commitment to high standards of safety, health and environment. We are committed in providing clean, healthy and
safe conditions to our employees. All of our employees are continuously updated on relevant aspects of safety especially with regards to
safe production, delivery, storage and handling of inventory items. Safety values are demonstrated in our day to day activities through
lead by example approach. Due to these controls and with the blessing of Almighty Allah no major accidents or incidents took place at
the mill during the year.

Pattern of Shareholding:

Pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is attached separately. No trade in shares of the
Company was carried out by the CEO, CFO and Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children

Subsequent Events:
No material changes or commitments affecting the Company happened after the year end up to the date of this report.
Acknowledgement:

The directors express their gratitude for the continued support of shareholders and employees of the Company during the period under
review and pray to Allah for better prospects in future.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Lahore Mohammad Hameed Aamer Hameed
06 October, 2022 Chief Executive Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2022

Name of Company:
Year Ended:

Service Industries Textile Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations) in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
a. Male: 6
b. Female: 1
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
Category Names
Independent Director * Mr. Omer Mohyudin Malik

Ms. Zainab Khan

Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Hameed
Mr. Aamer Hameed

Non-Executive Mr. ljaz Hameed
Mr. Tarig Hameed
Mr. Murtaza Hameed

Female Director Zainab Khan

*The Board comprised of minimum number of members which is seven (7) hence it fulfills the requirement of minimum
two (2) independent directors and the fraction (0.33) for independent directors has not been rounded up as one. Further,
the existing independent directors have the requisite skills and knowledge to take independent decisions;

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed companies, including
this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate
it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval
or updating is maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the the Act and these regulations.

7. The meeting of the Board was presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board
for this purpose .The Board has compiled with the requirements of this Act and regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of the meetings of the Board.

8. The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations.

9. Four members of the Board are exempted from Directors' Training Program by virtue of their requisite qualification and
required experience of serving on the Board of a listed company, and two have attended the Directors' Training Program
as prescribed.

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary, and Internal Auditor including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of Regulations.

Page » 16



A1
/I3

il
{ ) ) o
l{‘g,}l Service Industries Textiles Limited [Annual Report BRI

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Lahore
06 October, 2022

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before the approval of the Board.
The Board has formed committees comprising of the members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Chairman

Member
Member

i)  Omer Mohyudin Malik
ii) Zainab Khan
iii) Murtaza Hameed

b) HR & Remuneration Committee
i)  Zainab Khan

ii) ljaz Hameed
iii) Omer Mohyudin Malik

Chairperson
Member
Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for
compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committees was as per following:

a) Audit Committee: 4
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 2

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to Awan & Co Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. They
are involved in the internal audit functions on full time basis.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board
of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children)
of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
with.

Explanation for non compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 are given below:

sr. | Paragraph

Explanation
No. | Reference P

Description

Directors' Training Program shall be organized

1 19 By June 30, 2022, all directors shall acquire
' for Director by or before end of June 30, 2023.

certification under director training program

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

.

(IR

(1JAZ HAMEED)
Chairman
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Lahore-54660 Pakistan.

Main +92-42-35759223-5
www.crowe.pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SERVICE INDUSTRIES TEXTILES LIMITED
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Service Industries Textiles Limited (“the
Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions
of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as reflected in the
paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Sr. Paragraph L.
NO. Reference Description
One Director out of Seven Directors has not acquired the prescribed
1. 19 certification under the Directors' Training Program as required under
clause 19 of the Regulations.
Lahore (CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.)
06 October, 2022 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: CR2022101692aDOtxdBY

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a separate and independent legal entity. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. and
its affiliates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any professional services and does not
have an ownership or partnership interest in Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

©2022 Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SERVICE INDUSTRIES TEXTILES LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of SERVICE INDUSTRIES TEXTILES LIMITED (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022 and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial
position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the loss, its
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:

Sr. No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our report

Revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment Our key audit procedures included:

Refer to note 7 to the financial statements. The

Company has carried out revaluation of property, Evaluated competence, capabilities and
plant and equipment during the year that resulted objectivity of the valuer.

in surplus of Rs. 617 million. It has increased to

1.101 billion as at June 30,2022. Evaluate the nature, scope and objectives of

the valuer's work.
Revaluation surplus requires significant judgments

and estimates. Assessed relevance and reasonableness of
significant assumptions and methods used by

Involvement of subjectivity, inherent uncertainty the valuer as per his valuation report.

and the management judgements and estimates in

relation to such revaluation surplus may be complex Evaluated the relevance and reasonableness of

and can significantly impact the financial statements. the valuer's findings and conclusions and their

consistency.

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a separate and independent legal entity. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. and
its affiliates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any professional services and does not
have an ownership or partnership interest in Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
©2022 Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
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Sr. No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
For such reasons, we considered surplus on Checked that the independent valuer is in list
revaluation of property, plant and equipment as a of approved valuers of Pakistan Bank Association
key audit matter. (PBA).

Reviewed and assessed the adequacy of related
disclosures made in the financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act,
2017

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) Zakat deductible at source under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company

and deposited in the central Zakat fund estabilished under section 7 of that ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Nasir Muneer.

GeorelamainOnTe Loy

Lahore (CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.)

06 October, 2022 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: AR202210169810z16QNA

Page » 21



Il < (T _ o
W R/] Service Industries Textiles Limited
N\ /2

[ Annual Report

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorized share capital
20,000,000 (2021: 20,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 6 137,875,670 137,875,670
Share premium reserve 18,676,816 18,676,816
Accumlated loss (90,448,757) (78,092,622)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 7 1,101,751,321 484,750,860
1,167,855,050 563,210,724
Non Current Liabilities
Long term financing 8 46,066,037 52,209,054
Post employment benefit obligations 9 14,758,772 11,956,214
Government dues payable 11 - 1,425,270
Deferred tax liability 10 66,655,243 63,918,455
127,480,052 129,508,993
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 167,740,809 129,613,176
Unclaimed dividends 232,987 232,987
Unpaid dividends 683,629 364,412
Current portion of long term financing 8 12,000,000 12,000,090
Accrued markup - 5,546,056
Provision for taxation 12 16,629,942 26,424,478
197,287,367 174,181,199
Contingencies and Commitments 13 - -
1,492,622,469 866,900,916
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,358,771,728 717,220,869
Long term deposits 15 19,337,023 16,297,023
1,378,108,751 733,517,892
Current Assets
Stores and spares 16 5,254,179 4,843,349
Stock in trade 17 47,274,280 53,941,063
Trade debts 18 2,444,083 1,944,041
Advances and prepayments 19 24,628,792 24,715,369
Cash and bank balances 20 34,912,384 47,939,202
114,513,718 133,383,024
1,492,622,469 866,900,916

The annexed noteg from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial stgtements.

/

Mohammad Hameed Aamer Hameed
Chief Executive Director

Page » 22

Stznd

M. Muddasar Shahzad
Chief Financial Officer



/AN
W< M

E X/ Service Industries Textiles Limited

il
N\

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

[ Annual Report

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Revenue from sales 21 1,341,765,352 1,230,009,524
Cost of sales 22 (1,304,119,965) (1,099,763,761)
Gross Profit 37,645,387 130,245,763
Operating expenses:
- Distribution costs 23 (8,761,169) (8,375,749)
- Administrative expenses 24 (37,336,429) (34,648,012)
(46,097,598) (43,023,761)
Operating (Loss) / Profit (8,452,211) 87,222,002
Finance cost 25 (6,793,228) (5,010,180)
Other operating expenses 26 (2,738,750) (8,161,135)
Other income 27 10,432,455 6,684,287
900,477 (6,487,028)
(Loss) / Profit before Taxation (7,551,734) 80,734,974
Taxation 28
Current tax 9,843,684 26,566,603
Deferred tax (6,025,301) (5,374,519)
(3,818,383) (21,192,084)
Net (Loss) / Profit for the year (11,370,117) 59,542,890
(Loss) / Earnings per Share - Basic 29 (0.82) 9.91

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e

Mohammad Hameed
Chief Executive

Aamer Hameed
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Net (Loss) / Profit for the Year (11,370,117) 59,542,890
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 641,915,960 -
Related deferred tax impact (9,734,129) -
Experience adjustment on remeasurement of post
employment benefits (3,351,861) (3,244,938)
Related deferred tax impact 972,040 941,032
629,802,010 (2,303,906)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 618,431,893 57,238,984
The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Mohammad Hameed Aamer Hameed M. Muddasar Shahzad

Chief Executive Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Reserve Surplus on
- Share Share Deposit Revaluation of
Particulars Capital Money  |share Premium| Accumulated |Property, Plant Total
Reserve Loss and Equipment
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2020 44,491,590 150,000,000 - (152,466,845) 501,886,099 543,910,844
Net profit for the year - - - 59,542,890 - 59,542,890
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (2,303,906) - (2,303,906)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 57,238,984 - 57,238,984
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment on incremental depreciation charged in
current year - net of deferred tax - - - 15,805,239 (15,805,239) -
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment realized on disposal - - - 1,330,000 (1,330,000) -
Transferred to share capital 93,384,080 (93,384,080) - - - -
Transferred to share premium - (18,676,816) 18,676,816 - - -
Transferred to long term financing - (37,939,104) - - - (37,939,104)
Balance as at June 30, 2021 137,875,670 - 18,676,816  (78,092,622) 484,750,860 563,210,724
Net loss for the year - - - (11,370,117) - (11,370,117)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (2,379,821) 632,181,831 629,820,010
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (13,749,938) 632,181,831 618,431,893
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2021
at Rs. 1 per share - - - (13,787,567) - (13,787,567)
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment on incremental depreciation charged in
current year - net of deferred tax - - - 13,974,370 (13,974,370) -
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment realized on disposal - net - - - 1,207,000 (1,207,000) -
Balance as at June 30, 2022 137,875,670 - 18,676,816  (90,448,757) 1,101,751,321 1,167,855,050

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sutzad

Mohammad Hameed Aamer Hameed M. Muddasar Shahzad
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / profit before taxation (7,551,734) 80,734,974
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 42,415,401 37,668,448
- Post employment benefits 5,210,692 5,420,763
- Excess provision / unclaimed liabilities written back (10,400,000) (5,651,477)
- Workers' profit participation fund - 4,437,601
- Workers' welfare fund - 1,962,284
- Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,638,750 106,270
- Finance cost 6,793,228 5,010,180
45,658,071 48,954,069
Operating profit before working capital changes 38,106,337 129,689,043
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
- Stores and spares (410,830) (760,602)
- Stock in trade 6,666,783 4,598,653
- Trade debts (500,042) (674,171)
- Advances and prepayments 5,279,058 (6,743,521)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables 42,401,519 (16,467,789)
53,436,488 (20,047,430)
Cash Generated from Operations 91,542,825 109,641,613
Income tax paid (24,145,247) (19,105,011)
Finance cost paid (8,323,894) (5,449,809)
Post employment benefit paid (5,759,995) (5,633,519)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 53,313,689 79,453,274

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits paid

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

Long term financing - obtained from related parties
Long term financing - paid to related parties

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

i s

Mohammad Hameed Aamer Hameed
Chief Executive Director
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(46,089,050)
2,400,000
(3,040,000)

(69,971,836)
3,100,000
(816,000)

(46,729,050)

(67,687,836)

(13,468,350)
4,800,010
(10,943,117)

(70,417)
6,513,800
(18,513,890)

(19,611,457)

(12,070,507)

(13,026,818) (305,069)
47,939,202 48,244,271
34,912,384 47,939,202

Stz

M. Muddasar Shahzad
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
Note 1

The Company and its Operations

1.1

1.2

Note 2

Service Industries Textiles Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1962 as a Private Limited
Company under the repealed Companies Act 1913, (now the Companies Act, 2017) and was subsequently
converted into a Public Limited Company in 1970. The Company is domiciled in Pakistan and listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn made from raw cotton
and synthetic fibre.

The Information on geographical location and address of the Company's business is as under :
- The registered office of the Company is situated at 38 - Empress Road, Lahore.

- The Company's factory is situated at Rehman Shaheed Road, Gujrat.

Basis of Preparation

2.1

2.2

2.3

Note 3

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(1ASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from IFRS , the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except to the extent of
following:

Post employment benefit obligations Note 9 (stated at Present value)
Certain property, plant and equipment Note 14 (stated at Revalued / Fair value)

Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. All the figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Changes in Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Pronouncements

3.1

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective
in current year

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022. These
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective Date
Annual period
beginning on or after
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
[Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16] January 01, 2021

IFRS 16 Leases [Amendments] - COVID 19 rent related
concession extended beyond June 30, 2021 April 01, 2021
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Note 3, Changes in Accounting Standards, I nterpretations and Pronouncements - Continued...

3.2 Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

There are certain standards, amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which
are mandatory for companies having accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2022 but are considered
not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed
in these financial statements, except for the following:

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
(Annual Period beginning on or after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements [Amendments] January 1, 2022 & January 1, 2023
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors [Amendments] January 1, 2023
IAS 12 Income Taxes [Amendments] January 1, 2023
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment [Amendments] January 1, 2023
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets [Amendments] January 1, 2022
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

The Company will assess the impacts of these changes in the period of initial application once such changes
become effective for the Company.

Note 4
Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on the historical experience,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The basis and associated assumptions underlying the accounting estimates
used in the preparation of annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 are consistent with
previous year's unless otherwise stated.

Significant management estimates in these financial statements are relates primarily to followings:
4.1 Property, plant and equipment - Note 5.5 and 14
"The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on regular basis. Any change in estimates
in remaining useful life might effect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment

with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment, if any."

Furthermore, certain property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amounts as disclosed in note 14 to the
financial. The process of revaluation which require estimation about their fair values as at the reporting date.

4.2 Post employment benefits obligations - Note 5.2 and 9
The Company has recorded its post employment benefits at present value using actuarial assumptions regarding
increase in salaries in subsequent years and an estimate of discount rates. Change in actuarial assumptions over
the period of time may affect the fair value of post-employment benefits payable and the charge for such liability
accounted for in any given period.

4.3 Stores, spares and inventories, stores and spares - Note 5.7, 5.8, and 17
The Company has recorded its stores, spares and inventories using lower of cost and net realizable value.

Valuation of this inventory is reviewed at regular intervals for determination of possible impairment, if any. Any
possible impairment may change the future value of inventories.

Page » 28



/AN
|

Il <
{ . . L
l{‘g’}l Service Industries Textiles Limited [Annual Report JETIEE

Note 4, Use of Estimates and Judgments - Continued...

4.4

Note 5

Taxation - Note 5.4 and 28

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and the decisions taken by the appellate authorities.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the tax department at the assessment stage
and the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts
are shown as contingent liabilities. However, the management believes that the change in outcomes of estimates
would not have a material effect on disclosed figures in financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the periods presented.

51

52

53

5.4

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are
not recognized for future operating losses.

Post employment benefits

"The Company operates an approved, funded defined benefit plan for all of its permanent employees. Under
this plan, gratuity is paid to the retiring employees on the basis of their last drawn gross salary for each completed
year of service."

Actuarial gains / (losses) arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions for the
defined benefits plan are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
Past service costs are recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions are made in the financial statements to cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuation carried
out at each reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid or given in future for goods and services received or to be delivered or for any other amount, whether
or not billed to the Company.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax and is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss except to the extent that relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity,
in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

54.1 Current

The charge for current tax is higher of corporate tax (higher of tax based on taxable income and
minimum tax) and alternative corporate tax.

Corporate tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
laws of taxation. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates
expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates
and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered
necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the
year for such years. However, in case of loss for the year, income tax expense is recognized as
minimum tax liability on turnover of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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Note 5, 'Significant Accounting Policies - Continued...

Alternative corporate tax is calculated at 17% of accounting profit, after taking into account the
required adjustments.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities if, and only if, the entity has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

5.4.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets, liabilities and their tax bases.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.Carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted
according to the availability of profits. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent of probable future taxable profit available that will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been notified
for subsequent enactment at the reporting date.

5.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery and electrical
equipments which are stated at revalued amount, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and identified
impairment losses, if any. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts
of assets do not differ materially from their fair values. Additions, subsequent to revaluation, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost in relation to certain
assets also includes cost of the borrowing during construction period in respect of loans taken for procuring such
assets.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, except freehold land and leasehold improvement, is charged
to statement of profit or loss on reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 14 of the financial
statements. Depreciation on leasehold improvement is charged to profit or loss on straight line basis as disclosed
in note 14 of financial statements. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life. Incremental
depreciation representing the difference between actual depreciation based on revalued carrying amount of the
asset and equivalent depreciation based on the original carrying amount of the asset is transferred to equity
from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred taxes.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the assets are available for use while no depreciation
is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Depreciation method, residual value and useful lives of assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end
and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Major repairs and modifications to assets are capitalized while day to day maintenance and normal repairs are
charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.
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Note 5, Significant Accounting policies - Contd...
Note 5.5, Property, plant and equipment - Contd...

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

511

Disposal

The gain or loss on arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as difference between sales proceeds and carrying amounts of the asset and is recognized as gain / (loss) on
disposal of property, plant and equipment into the statement of profit or loss.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising due to revaluation are credited to revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment. Decreases that offset previous increases of any other property, plant and equipment of
the Company are debited against revaluation surplus directly in equity. All other decreases are charged to
statement of profit or loss.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other
borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment on non - financial assets

Carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In the absence of any information about the fair value, the recoverable amount
is determined to be the value in use. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the statement of profit
or loss.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value; whilst items considered obsolete
are written off. Cost of items in transit comprises invoice value plus incidental charges paid thereon. Net realizable
value signifies the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less necessary cost to make the sale.

Stock in trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is determined by using the following basis:

Raw and packing materials - Moving average cost

Materials in transit - Invoice value plus incidental charges
Work in process - Estimated manufacturing cost
Finished goods - Average manufacturing cost

Manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods comprises cost of materials, labor and
appropriate manufacturing overheads. Net realizable value signifies estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less necessary costs to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposit with banks in current and savings accounts, which are free of
encumbrances.

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are based on the transfer pricing policy that all transactions between the

Company and the related parties are at arm's length prices determined using the comparable uncontrolled price
method, except in circumstances where it is not in the interest of the Company to do so.
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Note 5, Significant Accounting Policies - Contd...

512

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

5.12.1

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Classification

Financial assets are classified in either of the three categories: at amortized cost, at fair value through
other comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss. Currently, the Company classifies
its financial assets at amortized cost. This classification is based on the Company's business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
The management determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade-
date — the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Except for trade receivables, financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss account. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the Company's right to receive payments is established. Trade receivables are
initially measured at the transaction price if these do not contain a significant financing component
in accordance with IFRS 15. Where the Company uses settlement date accounting for an asset that
is subsequently measured at amortized cost, the asset is recognized initially at its fair value on the
trade debt.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
Derecognition

Financial assets are primarily derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. The difference between carrying
amount and consideration received is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Note 5, Significant Accounting Policies - Contd...
Financial instruments- Contd...

5.12

512.2

Impairment of financial assets

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on a financial asset measured
at amortized cost and through other comprehensive income, a lease receivable or a contract asset.

The Company measures, at each reporting date, the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. Where the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses for trade receivables or contract assets that result from transactions under IFRS 15 and lease
receivables.

The Company recognizes the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal), that is required to adjust
the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized, in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially classified at amortized cost except for financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify
for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts,
commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate and contingent consideration recognized
in a business combination.

The Company does not reclassify any of its financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value minus transaction costs for all financial liabilities
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are credited in the statement of
profit and loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Such liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Note 5, Significant Accounting Policies - Contd...
Financial instruments- Contd...

5.12

5.13

5.12.3

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

The amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of financial
liability is presented in other comprehensive income and the remaining amount of change in the fair
value of the liability is presented in statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the initial date of recognition, and only if it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency or a group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the Company's key management
personnel. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or
loss.

All other liabilities

All other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. Difference between carrying amount and consideration paid
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Derecognition

"A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in statement of
profit or loss."

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Balances from contract with customers

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. The
Company recognizes a contract asset for the earned consideration that is conditional if the Company performs
by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is

due.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade receivables
are carried at original invoice amount less expected credit loss based on a review of all outstanding amounts
at the year end. Bad debts are written off when identified.
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Note 5, Significant Accounting Policies - Contd...
5.13 Balances from contract with customers - Contd...

Contract liabilities

514

5.15

5.16

5.17

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is
made or the payment is due if a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer.

Earnings per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance
risk. When applicable, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. The best
evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the
fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market
for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets,
the instrument is then initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value
at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is credited or charged to the
statement of profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the
valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. The Company’s policy
is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees at exchange rates prevailing
at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees at exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Exchange gains and losses are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is to be recognised in accordance with the aforementioned principle by applying the following steps:
i) Identify the contract with a customer.
i) Identify the performance obligation in the contract.
i) Determine the transaction price of the contract.
iv) Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations in the contract.
V) Recognize the revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company is in the business of sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at a point
in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customers which is usually at the time of delivery of
goods, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods.
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Note 5, Significant Accounting Policies - Contd...

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

Note 6

Unclaimed dividend

The Company recognises unclaimed dividend which was declared and remained unclaimed by the shareholder
from the date it was due and payable.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
company’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Chief Executive Officer include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly administrative
and other operating expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company.

A contingent liability is also disclosed when there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is declared and other appropriations are
recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
12,222,988 2,884,580 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 122,229,880 28,845,800
23,400 23,400 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued
for consideration other than cash 234,000 234,000

1,541,179 1,541,179 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued

6.1

as fully paid bonus shares 15,411,790 15,411,790
- 9,338,408 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued
at premium of Rs. 2 to sponsors - 93,384,080
13,787,567 13,787,567 137,875,670 137,875,670
2022 2021

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding Number of shares
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,787,567 4,449,159
Issued against share deposit money = 9,338,408
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,787 567 13,787,567
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6.2 In October 2020, the general meeting of shareholders approved the issue of 9,338,408 ordinary shares of Rs.
10 each, which were issued at premium of Rs. 2 per shares. These shares were issued against share deposit
money.

6.3 23,400 shares of Rs. 10 each were issued to Pakistan Industrial Credit and Investment Corporation (PICIC) for

consideration other than cash. (2021: 23,400 shares)

6.4 There are no agreements with shareholders for any specific voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal

and block voting etc.

Note 7
Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Land - freehold
Opening balance 343,833,702 343,833,702
Add: Surplus on revaluation arisen during the year 608,350,000 -
952,183,702 343,833,702
Factory buildings on freehold land
Opening balance 69,841,856 77,602,062
Add: Surplus on revaluation arisen during the year 2,155,133 -
Less: Related deferred taxation (624,989) -
71,372,000 77,602,062
Plant and machinery
Opening balance 64,432,525 73,069,472
Add: Surplus on revaluation arisen during the year 24,183,978 -
Less: Related deferred taxation (7,013,354) -
81,603,149 73,069,472
Electric fittings, equipment and appliances
Opening balance 6,642,777 7,380,863
Add: Surplus on revaluation arisen during the year 7,226,849 -
Less: Related deferred taxation (2,095,786) -
11,773,840 7,380,863
1,116,932,691 501,886,099
Incremental depreciation charged on revalued property, plant
and equipment in current year transferred to retained
earnings - net of deferred tax (13,974,370) (15,805,239)
Surplus realized on disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment
transferred to retained earnings - net of deferred tax (1,207,000) (1,330,000)
1,101,751,321 484,750,860
7.1 This represents surplus over book value resulting from the revaluation of above-mentioned assets, adjusted by

incremental depreciation and related deferred tax arising on revaluation of the above-mentioned assets except
freehold land. Latest revaluation was carried out by an approved, independent valuer on June 30, 2022 using
current market price / replacement cost that has resulted in additional revaluation surplus of Rs. 641.915 million.
Following basis has been used for revaluation.

- Land Market value

- Building Depreciated replacement cost
- Plant and machinery Depreciated replacement cost
- Power plant Depreciated replacement cost
- Electric fittings, equipment and appliances Depreciated replacement cost

The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the shareholders
in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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Note 8
Long Term Financing
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Related parties - Unsecured
Loan from Directors / Related parties 8.1 58,066,037 64,209,144
Less: Current portion (12,000,000) (12,000,090)
46,066,037 52,209,054
8.1 This represents financing obtained from directors / related parties from time to time, to pay off financing

previously obtained from the banks and meet the liquidity requirements of the Company. The outstanding balance
of this financing is repayable in equal monthly installments of Rs. 1 million each. This financing is unsecured
and carries markup @ 3 months KIBOR plus 1%. However, considering the current situation of the Company,
the directors have waived off the accrued markup of last quarter of the current year and agreed to charge the
markup from July 01, 2022 @ 10% per annum.

Note 9
Post Employment Benefit Obligations
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Post employment benefit obligations 14,758,772 11,956,214
9.1 The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering its permanent employees subject to completion

of minimum prescribed period of service. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out annually by an
independent actuary and the latest actuarial valuation has been carried out as at June 30, 2022. Following key
information is included in that actuarial report:

9.2 Movement in net liability for defined benefit obligations
Opening balance 11,956,214 8,924,032
Charge for the year 9.4 5,210,692 5,420,763
Net remeasurements for the year - Other
comprehensive income 3,351,861 3,244,938
20,518,767 17,589,733
Benefits paid during the year (5,759,995) (5,633,519)
Closing balance 14,758,772 11,956,214
9.3 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations
Opening balance 11,956,214 8,924,032
Current service cost for the year 4,303,070 3,997,647
Past Service Cost - 903,998
Interest cost for the year 907,622 519,118
Remeasurement adjustments 3,351,861 3,244,938
Benefits paid during the year (5,759,995) (5,633,519)
Closing balance 14,758,772 11,956,214
9.4 Charge for the year
Current service cost 4,303,070 3,997,647
Past service cost - 903,998
Interest cost 907,622 519,118
5,210,692 5,420,763
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2022 2021
9.5 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows: Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales 22 4,481,195 4,661,856
Distribution costs 23 104,214 108,415
Administrative expenses 24 625,283 650,492
5,210,692 5,420,763
9.6 Actuarial assumptions
The present value of defined benefit obligations and charge for the current year has been determined on the
basis of actuarial estimates provided by the actuary as under:
Discount rate - per annum 13.25% 8.50%
Expected rate of increase in salary level - per annum 10.00% 10.00%
Expected mortality rate for active employees SLIC (2001-2005) Mortality Table
Actuarial valuation method Projected Unit Credit Method
9.7 Year end sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations
Reasonably possible changes as at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligations as stated below:
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption obligation obligation
% Rupees Rupees
Discount rate 1% 14,487,118 15,043,614
Salary increase 1% 15,107,187 14,420,758
9.8 Estimated charge for the year 2022-2023 2023
Rupees
Current service cost 5,508,520
Interest cost 1,477,972
6986492
9.9 The Company does not have any plan assets covering its post employment benefit obligations payable. The

comparative statement of present value of defined benefit obligations is as under:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Present value of defined
benefit obligations 14,758,772 11,956,214 8,924,032 10,182,278 10,182,278
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Note 10
Deferred Tax Liability
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax liability arising in respect of taxable temporary differences:
- Accelerated tax depreciation on property, plant and equipment 15,681,899 15,403,639
- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 63,292,176 59,508,941
78,974,075 74,912,580
Deferred tax asset arising in respect of deductible temporary differences:
- Provision for workers' profit participation fund (7,633,702) (6,469,239)
- Provision for workers' welfare fund (405,086) (1,057,584)
- Post employment benefit obligations (4,280,044) (3,467,302)
(12,318,832) (10,994,125)
66,655,243 63,918,455
10.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax liability - net
Opening balance 63,918,455 70,234,006
Charged to other comprehensive income 8,762,089 (941,032)
Charged to the profit or loss (6,025,301) (5,374,519)
Closing balance 66,655,243 63,918,455
10.2 Deferred tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences are measured at tax rate of 29% (2021: 29%).
10.3 Analysis of change in deferred tax
Statement of Financial Statement of
Position Profit or Loss
2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax Liability / (Asset)
Accelerated tax depreciation on
property, plant and equipment (278,260) (3,950,940) 278,260 3,950,940
Surplus on revaluation on
property, plant and equipment (3,783,235) 6,835,430 (5,950,894) (6,835,430)
Provision for Workers' profit participation fund 1,164,463 1,755,883 (1,164,463) (1,755,883)
Provision for Workers' welfare fund (652,498) 512,294 652,498 (512,294)
Post employment benefit obligations 812,742 879,333 159,298 61,699
Unused tax losses - 283,551 - (283,551)
(2,736,788) 6,315,551 (6,025,301) (5,374,519)
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Note 11
Trade and Other Payables
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Trade creditors 11.1 37,619,102 23,702,451
Accrued liabilities 36,072,623 60,965,588
Government dues payable 11.2 1,425,270 8,551,620
Contract liabilities 55,090,151 4,933,165
Workers' profit participation fund 11.3 26,323,112 22,307,722
Workers' welfare fund 11.4 1,396,849 3,646,842
Income tax withheld 1,673,889 988,435
Sales tax payable 8,139,813 4,517,353
167,740,809 129,613,176

11.1 This does not include any amount payable to related parties of the Company.
11.2 This represents the amount payable to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) on levy of Gas Infrastructure
and Development Cess (GIDC).
11.3 Workers' profit participation fund
Opening balance 22,307,722 16,252,952
Provision for the year 26 - 4,437,601
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 4,015,390 1,617,169
26,323,112 22,307,722
Paid during the year - -
Closing Balance 26,323,112 22,307,722
11.4 Workers' welfare fund
Opening balance 3,646,842 1,880,309
Expense recognised during the year 26 - 1,962,284
3,646,842 3,842,593
Payments made during the year (2,249,993) (195,751)
Closing balance 1,396,849 3,646,842
Note 12
Provision for Taxation
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 26,424,478 13,826,623
Provision for current year 16,772,067 26,574,478
Prior year adjustment (6,928,383) (7,875)
36,268,162 40,393,226
Payments / adjustments during the year (19,638,220) (13,968,748)
16,629,942 26,424,478

12.1

12.2

Income tax assessments are deemed finalized up to the Tax Year 2021 as returns were filed under self assessment

scheme.

The provision for current year tax represents minimum tax on revenue @ 1.25%. (2021: corporate tax at rate

of 29%).
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Note 13
Contingencies and Commitments

13.1 Contingencies
The income tax department has raised demand of Rs. 941,492 in respect of tax year 2012 through an order
passed under section 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company has filed appeal against the demand
before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). The matter is still pending before ATIR. The management
does not foresee any adverse outcome against the Company based on the opinion of legal advisor, therefore
no provision is recorded in these financial statements.

13.2 Commitments

There are no material commitments outstanding as at the reporting date (2021: Nil).
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Note 14, Property, Plant and Equipment - Contd...

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

[ Annual Report

Latest revaluation of property, plant and equipment was carried out by an independent valuer (refer to note
7) as on June 30, 2022. Had there been no revaluation, the net book values of revalued assets would have been

as under:

Land
Factory building
Plant and machinery

Electric fittings, equipment and appliances

As on June 30, 2022

Net book value

Forced sales value

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Rupees Rupees
16,298 761,760,000
3,857,584 76,295,520
153,300,518 194,250,000
1,851,503 13,125,000
159,025,903 1,045,430,520
2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
22 41,736,115 37,015,178
24 679,286 653,270
42,415,401 37,668,448

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Location / Address

Rehman Shaheed Road, Industrial Area, G.T Road, Gujrat.

Usage of immovable property Total Area (Kanals)

Production and warehouse 52.9

The significant inputs used in the fair value measurements categorized within Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy, together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at June 30, 2022 are as shown below:

L . . A i itative D
Description Valuation Technique Significant Observable Inputs F_alr value Quantlt_atlve ata /
Hierarchy |Range (weighted average)
Land Market enquiries and survey as per Level 2
kanal/marla for land
Factory building Market survey Level 2
Sales value Market val § hi ideri
_ comparison approach arket value of machinery considering
Plant and machinery condition, manufacturing date, country Level 2 NIL
of manufacturing and replacement value
Power plant Level 2
o Market and replacement value
Electric fittings,
. . Level 2
equipment and appliances

There are no Level 1 and Level 3 assets or any transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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Note 15
Long Term Deposits
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited -SNGPL 13,377,023 13,377,023
Water and Power Development Authority -WAPDA 5,960,000 2,920,000
19,337,023 16,297,023
Note 16
Stores and Spares
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Stores and spares 3,742,561 3,423,574
Packing materials 1,511,618 1,419,775
5,254,179 4,843,349
Note 17
Stock in Trade
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Raw materials 24,577,446 41,630,449
Work in process 15,988,206 8,438,854
Finished goods 3,678,141 3,072,945
Waste 3,030,487 798,815
47,274,280 53,941,063
47,274,280 53,941,063
Note 18
Trade Debts
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Local debts (Unsecured - considered good) 18.1 2,444,083 1,944,041
18.1  Trade debtors does not include any amount receivable from related parties of the Company (2021: Nil).
Note 19
Advance and Prepayments
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Advances to employees (Unsecured - considered good) 1,942,690 1,047,866
Advance to supplier - 6,560,000
Income tax deducted at source 21,943,260 16,750,779
Prepayments 742,842 356,724
24,628,792 24,715,369
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Note 20
Cash and Bank Balances
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 474,297 538,617
Cash at banks in current accounts 34,438,087 47,400,585
34,912,384 47,939,202
20.1 The above figures of cash and bank balances reconcile to the amount of cash and cash equivalents shown in
the statement of cash flows.
Note 21
Revenue
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Local:
- Yarn 1,569,284,183 1,438,599,249
- Wastes 11,577,920 7,493,275

Less: Sales tax

1,580,862,103
(239,096,751)

1,446,092,524
(216,083,000)

1,341,765,352

1,230,009,524

211 All the revenue is recognized at a point in time.
Note 22
Cost of Sales
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Raw materials consumed 22.1 967,658,662 737,851,673
Stores and spares consumed 12,783,863 15,308,027
Packing materials consumed 15,127,634 12,323,390
Fuel and power 169,156,939 134,942,518
Salaries, wages and other benefits 22.2 103,645,902 155,862,687
Insurance 1,233,311 1,289,893
Repairs and maintenance 3,163,759 7,043,896
Depreciation 14.2 41,736,115 37,015,178
1,314,506,185 1,101,637,262
Work in process:
- Opening stock 8,438,854 7,029,397
- Closing stock (15,988,206) (8,438,854)
(7,549,352) (1,409,457)
1,306,956,833 1,100,227,805
Finished goods including waste:
- Opening stock 3,871,760 3,407,716
- Closing stock (6,708,628) (3,871,760)
(2,836,868) (464,044)
1,304,119,965 1,099,763,761
22.1 Raw materials consumed
Opening balance 41,630,449 48,102,603
Purchases 950,605,659 731,379,519
992,236,108 779,482,122
Less: Closing balance 17 (24,577,446) (41,630,449)
Raw material consumed 967,658,662 737,851,673

22.2 This includes Rs. 4.481 million (2021: Rs. 4.662 million) in respect of post employment benefit obligations.
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Note 23
Distribution Cost
2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees
Salaries and benefits 23.1 1,072,214 1,173,415
Commission 7,688,955 7,202,334

8,761,169

8,375,749

23.1 This includes Rs. 0.104 million (2021: Rs. 0.108 million) in respect of post employment benefit obligations.

Note 24
Administrative Expenses

2022 2021

Note Rupees Rupees

Salaries,wages and other benefits 24.1 23,702,145 22,475,326
Utilities 1,014,351 581,740
Printing and stationery 618,681 584,785
Communication 967,034 843,314
Travelling and conveyance 1,638,021 834,100
Repairs and maintenance 554,350 783,855
Rent, rates and taxes 994,741 811,158
Vehicle running and maintenance 857,108 1,201,099
Fees and subscription 106,010 612,500
Legal and professional charges 2,702,664 2,349,701
Entertainment 1,515,015 1,571,501
Advertisement 703,000 237,192
Newspapers and periodicals 55,334 67,062
Donations and employees welfare 24.2 1,130,500 865,900
Gardening expenses 19,860 88,240
Miscellaneous 78,329 87,269
Depreciation 14.2 679,286 653,270

37,336,429 34,648,012

24.1 This includes Rs. 0.6252 million (2021: Rs. 0.6504 million) in respect of post employment benefits obligations.

24.2 This includes the amount of Rs. 940,000 (2021: Rs. 520,000) paid to M/S Gujranwala Welfare Clinic, which is

related party due to common directorship.

Note 25
Finance Cost
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Markup on financing 2,597,061 3,272,546
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 11.3 4,015,390 1,617,169
Bank charges 180,777 120,465
6,793,228 5,010,180
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Note 26
Other Operating Expenses
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Auditors' remuneration:
- Statutory audit fee 852,500 775,000
- Other attestation services 247,500 225,000
1,100,000 1,000,000
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 11.3 - 4,437,601
Provision for workers' welfare fund 11.4 - 1,962,284
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 1,638,750 761,250
2,738,750 8,161,135
Note 27
Other Income
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Scrape sale 32,455 1,032,810
Excess provision / unclaimed liabilities written back 10,400,000 5,651,477
10,432,455 6,684,287
Note 28
Taxation
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Current:
- Charge for the year 16,772,067 26,574,478
- Prior period adjustments (6,928,383) (7,875)
9,843,684 26,566,603
Deferred tax (6,025,301) (5,374,519)
3,818,383 21,192,084
28.1  Reconciliation of tax charge for the year:
(Loss) / profit before taxation (7,551,734) 80,734,974
Tax @ 29% on profit before taxation (2,190,003) 23,413,142
Prior year tax charge (6,928,383) (7,875)
Other adjustments 18,962,070 3,161,336
Deferred taxation (6,025,301) (5,374,519)
3,818,383 21,192,084
Note 29
Earnings per Share
2022 2021
Net (loss) / profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders Rupees (11,370,117) 59,542,890
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number 13,787,567 6,005,560
(Loss) / Earnings per share - Basic and diluted Rupees (0.82) 9.91
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Liabilities arising from Financing Activities
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As at June 30, Non-cash Cash flows As at June 30,
2021 changes (Net) 2022
Rupees
Unclaimed dividends 232,987 - - 232,987
Unpaid dividends 364,412 13,787,567 (13,468,350) 683,629
Long term financing 64,209,144 - (6,143,107) 58,066,037
64,573,556 13,787,567 (19,611,457) 58,749,666
As at June 30, Non-cash Cash flows As at June 30,
2020 changes (Net) 2021
Rupees
Unclaimed dividends 232,987 - - 232,987
Unpaid dividends 434,829 - (70,417) 364,412
Long term financing 38,270,130 37,939,104 (12,000,090) 64,209,144
38,704,959 37,939,104 (12,070,507) 64,573,556

Note 31

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, allowances including all benefits to the Chief
Executive officer, Directors and other Executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief E - Chief E -
Executive X?CUIve Executives Total Executive ngU|ve Executives Tota
. Director . Director
Officer Officer
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Managerial remuneration 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,420,000 18,420,000 4,800,000 4,200,000 8,556,000 17,556,000
Medical allowance / reimbursement - 306,328 - 306,328 - 397,000 - 397,000
4,800,000 4,506,328 9,420,000 18,726,328 4,800,000 4,597,000 8,556,000 17,953,000
Number of persons 1 1 4 1 1

31.1
31.2

31.3
Rs. 1.2 million in a financial year.
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Note 32

Transactions with Related Parties

/1 Service Industries Textiles Limited

[ Annual Report

Related parties comprise associate directors of the Company, undertakings their close relatives and key management personnel.
The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Significant transactions
with related parties and balances due to / from them are as under:

Transactions during the year 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Related party Relationship Nature of transaction
Directors and close Associated persons Long term financing Obtained 4,800,010 6,513,800
relatives thereof Long term financing repaid (10,943,117) (18,513,890)
Markup charged on long term financing 2,597,061 3,272,546
Markup on long term financing repaid / adjusted (8,143,117) (5,449,809)
Short term borrowings obtained 7,600,000 -
Short term borrowings repaid (7,600,000) -
Share deposit money transfered to long term financing - 37,939,104
Ordinary shares issued at premium against share deposit money - 112,060,896
Dividend paid 7,820,656 -
M/S Gujranwala Common Directorship Donation paid during the year (940,000) (520,000)
Welfare Clinic
Balance outstanding as at June 30,
Payable to Directors Long term financing 58,066,037 64,209,144
Accrued markup on long term financing - 5,546,056
32.1 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement

/ agreement in place.

Sr No | Name of Related Party | Basis of Relationship Aggregate % of Shareholding
1 Mr. Muhammad Hameed CEO 17.49
2 Mr. Aamer Hameed Director 16.65
3 Mr. ljaz Hameed Director 15.61
4 Ms. Uzma Hameed Related party close relationship of Director 13.52
5 Ms. Saima Hameed Related party close relationship of Director 9.08
6 Mr. Tariq Hameed Director 0.65
Note 33
Plant Capacity and Production
2022 2021
KGs KGs
100% plant capacity converted into
20/S (2021: 20/S) count based on three shifts
per day for 1080 shifts (2021: 1080 shifts) 7,036,705 7,036,705
Actual production for the year
converted into 20/S (2021: 20/S) 4,895,093 4,733,478

Plant capacity is determined on the basis of management estimates as it is difficult to calculate precisely the production capacity
of spinning unit. The production capacity fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, spindle
speed, twist, maintenance of machinery, power shutdown and raw materials used, and the pattern of production adopted in

any particular year.

The reason for shortfall in production is due to its demand and various other factors such as interruption of power supply, sub-
optimal working conditions like humidity and moisture, low quality of raw cotton, and wear and tear etc.
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Note 34

Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on having cost efficient
funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management
as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

34.1

34.2

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign currency, interest rate, commodity price and equity price that will affect the Company's income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. This exists due to the Company's exposure resulting from
outstanding import and export payments. As there are no foreign currency receivables / payables of the Company,
it is not exposed to currency risk (2021 :Rs Nil).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises from short and long term borrowings.
These are benchmarked to variable rates which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

As the Company has no significant floating interest rate assets, the Company's income is substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest_bearing financial
instruments as at the reporting date is as follows:

2021 2020
. L e Rupees --------------
Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Long term financing 58,066,037 64,209,144

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2022, if interest rates on the Company's borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 0.581 million (2021:
Rs. 0.642 million), mainly as a result of interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.

Price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in the market.The Company is not exposed to any market price risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily

trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
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Note 34, Financial Risk Management - Contd...

Credit risk of the Company arises from deposits with banks, trade receivables and other receivables. The
management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored. For banks and financial
institutions, only independently rated parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such
assets and available external credit ratings, if any. As at June 30, 2022, the maximum exposure to credit risk
is equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets as detailed below:

2022 2021
Note s Rupees --------------
Long term deposits 15 19,337,023 16,297,023
Trade debts 18 2,444,083 1,944,041
Bank balances 20 34,438,087 47,400,585
The aging of trade debts as at the reporting date is as follows:
2022 2021
-------------- Rupees --------------
Past due 1 - 30 days 2,444,083 1,944,041
Past due 31 - 60 days - -
Past due 61 - 120 days - -
More than 120 days - -
2,444,083 1,944,041

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policies, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. The
Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a
large number of counter parties.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The Company does not hold collateral
as security.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are
operated in largely independent markets. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties
are either banks (with reasonably high credit ratings) and trade receivables for which the exposure is spread
over a large number of counter parties.

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:
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Note 34, Financial Risk Management - Contd...

34.3

Rating Rating
Short term | Long term Agency 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 2,488 2,488
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 5,254,624 12,198,005
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 9,595,490 1,124,250
JS Bank Limited Al+ AA- JCR-VIS 840 640
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCR-VIS 18,225,230 33,096,496
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA JCR-VIS 1,304,343 974,802
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 51,000 -
Habib Metropolitian Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 4,072 3,904

34,438,087 47,400,585

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to dynamic
nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines
available. The Company's liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid
assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios and maintaining debt financing plans.
The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period as at the reporting date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2022:

Carrying | |Contractual Within
Amount | | cash flows 1 year
......................................................... Rupees in "000..........coviriiiiiniie e

Description 1-2 Years || 2-5Years || 5- 10 years

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2022:

Long term financing 58,066 92,099 11,858 12,487 41,938 25,347
Trade and other payables 73,692 73,692 73,692 - - -
131,758 165,791 85,550 12,487 41,938 25,347

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2021:

Long term financing 64,209 109,550 11,783 12,230 39,766 45,771
Trade and other payables 84,668 84,668 84,668 - - -
Accrued markup on long
term financing 5,546 5,546 5,546 - - -
154,423 199,764 101,997 12,230 39,766 45,771

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest
rates / mark up rates effective as at the reporting date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in
relevant notes to these financial statements.

Page » 54



AN
3 .“

/3
&)

/1 Service Industries Textiles Limited ["Annual Report IEIEB

Note 34, Financial Risk Management - Contd...

34.4

34.5

Note 35

Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as at amortized cost

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 2,444,083 1,944,041
Cash and bank balances 34,912,384 47,939,202
37,356,467 49,883,243
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Long term financing 58,066,037 64,209,144
Trade and other payable 73,691,725 84,668,039
Accrued markup on long term financing - 5,546,056
131,757,762 154,423,239

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying value
and the fair value estimates.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the
reporting date. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. The management
believes that the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Capital Risk Management

The Company's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain the future development of the Company's business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed,
which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the
level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

a)

b)

to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders; and

to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example,
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, if possible, selling surplus property, plant
and equipment without affecting the optimal production and operating level and regulating its dividend payout
thus maintaining smooth capital management.

In line with the industry norms, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non current) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the statement of
financial position, plus net debt.

The gearing ratio of the Company is calculated as follows:
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Note 35, Capital Risk Management - Contd... 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Total borrowings 58,066,037 64,209,144
Cash and bank balances (34,912,384) (47,939,202)
Net debt 23,153,653 16,269,942
Equity 1,167,855,050 563,210,724
Total capital employed 1,191,008,703 579,480,666
Gearing ratio 1.94% 2.81%

Note 36
Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

The CEO is responsible for the Company's entire product portfolio and considers business as a single operating segment. The
Company's assets allocation decisions are based on a single integrated investment strategy and the Company's performance
is evaluated on an overall basis.

The internal reporting provided to the CEO for the Company's assets, liabilities and performance is prepared on a basis consistent
with the measurement and recognition principles of approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The Company is domiciled in Pakistan. All of the Company's income is from the entities incorporated in Pakistan.
36.1 Entity-wide disclosures regarding reportable segment are as follows:

- Information about major customers
One customer of the Company accounts for 14% (2021: 20%) of total sales for the year. Revenue from
such customer is Rs. 222,540,368 (2021: Rs. 245,756,539).
- Information about geographical areas
- All non-current assets of the Company are located in Pakistan as at the reporting date.
- Information about product
- The major products of the company are Cotton Yarn 42/single and 32/single.

Note 37
Number of Employees 2022 2021
Number Number

Total number of employees as at June 30,

- Permanent 263 272

- Contractual 5 74
Average number of employees during the year

- Permanent 268 278

- Contractual 40 41
Note 38

Date of Authorization for Issue

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of the Company on
October 06, 2022.

Note 39
General

Comparative figures are re-arranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison. No material re-arrangements

/ reclassificationg have been made in these financial statements.

Mohammad Hameed Aamer Hameed M. Muddasar Shahzad
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)())

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING FORM 34
1.1 Name of the Company | Service Industries Textiles Limited |
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at [ 30-06-2022 I
------ Shareholdings------
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
550 1 100 13,634
463 101 500 114,593
133 501 1,000 111,107
130 1,001 5,000 328,005
29 5,001 10,000 222,933
8 10,001 15,000 96,090
2 15,001 20,000 38,300
6 20,001 25,000 129,521
3 25,001 30,000 86,000
3 35,001 40,000 114,720
2 40,001 45,000 89,500
6 45,001 50,000 293,980
3 50,001 55,000 155,360
1 60,001 65,000 65,000
1 65,001 70,000 66,500
1 80,001 85,000 84,603
3 85,001 90,000 269,239
1 95,001 100,000 97,500
1 100,001 105,000 101,601
1 110,001 115,000 113,446
2 120,001 125,000 245,183
1 140,001 145,000 141,601
2 160,001 165,000 325,603
1 195,001 200,000 199,420
1 225,001 230,000 225,701
1 270,001 275,000 270,833
1 285,001 290,000 288,316
1 430,001 435,000 431,703
1 1,150,001 1,155,000 1,155,000
3 1,860,001 1,865,000 5,590,908
1 2,320,001 2,325,000 2,321,667
1,362 13,787,567
2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 8,821,566 63.9820%
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Associated Companies, 0 0.0000%
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
2.3.3 NIT and ICP 276,354 2.0044%
2.3.4 Banks Development 74,154 0.5378%
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies 299,920 2.1753%
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 7,900 0.0573%
Funds
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% 8,722,307 63.2621%
or more
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local 4,290,908 31.1216%
b. Foreign 0 0.0000%
2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
- Joint Stock Companies 9,989 0.0724%
- Others 6,776 0.0491%
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on June 30, 2022

No. of Shares

Sr. No. Name Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): - -
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 MR. AAMER HAMEED 2,295,339 16.6479%
2 MR. IJAZ HAMEED 2,151,952 15.6079%
3 MR. MUHAMMAD HAMEED 2,411,380 17.4895%
4 MR. TARIQ HAMEED 89,713 0.6507%
5 MR. MURTAZA HAMEED 225,701 1.6370%
6 MR. OMAR MOHY-UD-DIN MALIK 500 0.0036%
7 MRS. ZAINAB KHAN 500 0.0036%
8 MRS. ROBINA 1JAZ W/O 1JAZ HAMEED 393,981 2.8575%
9 MRS. SAIMA HAMEED W/O AAMER HAMEED 1,252,500 9.0843%
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 381,974 2.7704%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 MR. MUHAMMAD HAMEED (CDC) 2,411,380
2 MR. AAMER HAMEED (CDC) 2,295,339
3 MR. IJAZ HAMEED (CDC) 2,151,952
4 MST. UZMA HAMEED (CDC) 1,863,636
5 MRS. SAIMA HAMEED W/O AAMER HAMEED (CDC) 1,252,500

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their

spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No NAME SALE
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16.6479%
15.6079%
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9.0843%

PURCHASE




Service Industries Textiles Limited | Annual Report IR

SERVICE INDUSTRIES TEXTILES LIMITED
FORM OF PROXY

Please quote Folio Number

( )

1/ We

of

being a member of SERVICE INDUSTRIES TEXTILES LIMITED hereby appoint

Mr.

of

another member of the Company or failing him

Mr.

of

another member of the Company as my proxy to attend, act and vote for me and on my behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday October 28, 2022 at 09:30 a.m at the Registered Office, 38-Empress Road,
Lahore, and at any adjournment thereof.

Signature
on
Five Ruppees
Revenue
Stamp

(Signatures  should agree with
the specimen signatures registered
with the Company).

Witness

Date

NOTE:-
The proxy must be signed across a Five Rupees Revenue Stamp and it should be deposited in
the Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
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